1970

**Clearfield State Bank v. W. S. Brimhall, Commissioner of Financial Institutions of the State of Utah; and Bank of Northern Utah :
Appellant's Brief**

STATEMENT OF THE NATURE OF CASE

This is an action for a judicial review of the actions and proceedings of the defendant Commissioner of Financial Institutions in authorizing the Bank of Northern Utah to operate a bank in Clearfield, Utah, pursuant to the order of said Commissioner, dated March 12, 1969.

DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

The lower court awarded judgment in favor of defendants and against plaintiff, of no cause of action.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

The plaintiff-appellant seeks reversal of the lower court decision, and a determination that the defendant Commissioner's action in authorizing the Bank of Northern Utah to operate a bank in Clearfield, Utah, was arbitrary, capricious, an abuse of discretion, and otherwise not in accordance with law; and for a judgment and order vacating and holding invalid the order of said Commissioner wherein such authorization was granted, enjoining defendant Bank of Northern from establishing its bank at Clearfield, and awarding damages to plaintiff-appellant in event the Bank of Northern Utah engages in the banking business.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

On or about September 17, 1968, the defendant, Bank of Northern Utah, an unincorporated association, filed its application with the defendant Commissioner to operate a bank in Clearfield, Utah. After due notice of the filing of such application was given, protests to the granting of such application were filed by six banking institutions, including plaintiff-appellant, and the State Savings and Loan Association. Plaintiff operates a bank at Clearfield, Utah. A public hearing was held on November 26-29, 1968, and concluded on December 6, 1968. The defendant Commissioner issued his Findings of Fact, Conclusions, and Order on March 12, 1969. (R. 6-10) The plaintiff-appellant prosecuted its review of that order, (R. 1-5) and defendants filed their answers to the complaint. (R. 14-17; R. 21-22). Determination was made

by the lower court following hearing thereon, the court issuing a memorandum decision (R. 24-34) and its judgment. (R. 35, 36) Appeal has been taken from the memorandum decision and the judgment (R. 37)

In this brief the transcript of testimony of the administrative hearing is referred to by the abbreviation, "Tr.", and the exhibits, as marked in the hearing. In the hearing the plaintiff-appellant was referred to as the "protestant Clearfield State Bank" and the defendant Bank of Northern Utah by the designation "applicant". The parties are referred to herein by these terms as well as by the designations in the lower court.

ARGUMENT POINT I

THE PROPOSED BANKING FACILITY IS IN FACT A BRANCH BANK AND ANY ESTABLISHMENT THEREOF CONTRA- VENES STATE LAW.

Section 7-3-6, U.C.A. 1953, as amended, precludes the establishment of a branch bank in Clearfield, Utah, by a state bank, inasmuch as that municipality is not a city of the first class, and the Clearfield State Bank is located at Clearfield. The statute provides, in part:

"Except in cities of the first class, or within unincorporated areas of a county in which a city of the first class is located, no branch bank shall be established in any city or town in which is located a bank or banks, state or national, regularly transacting a customary banking business, unless the bank seeking to establish such branch shall take over an existing branch. * * * "

It is submitted that the proposed institution is in fact a branch of the Bank of Utah, and that defendant applicant has attempted by a subterfuge to circumvent the provisions of the statute aforementioned.

The evidence at the administrative hearing indicates that the Bank of Utah has its principal office at Ogden, Utah, and maintains branches at South Ogden, Riverdale, and Roy, Utah, all within a few miles and travel minutes from Clearfield. (Tr. 280-282; Plaintiff protestant's Exhibit C) It is also apparent that the controlling stock ownership of the Bank of Utah and the proposed controlling stock ownership of the applicant are one and the same; that is, those incorporators whose stock ownership will control the defendant Bank of Northern Utah are also the controlling stockholders of the Bank of Utah. (Tr. 462, 159-160)

According to 1 Fletcher, Cyclopedia Corporations, pages 240-241:

“Where the corporate form of organization is adopted or a corporate entity is asserted in an endeavor to evade a statute as to modify its intent, courts will disregard the corporation or its entity and look at the substance and reality of the matter.”

That a “branch” bank arises where there is common ownership of two banking corporations is apparent from the case of *Braeburn Securities Corporation v. Smith*, 153 N.E. 2d 806, wherein the Illinois Supreme Court explained a rationale of the bank holding company act of that state as follows:

“ * * * Branch banking in Illinois has been prohibited for many years.

“It is clear that this prohibition could be circumvented and indirect branch banking result if, through ownership of bank stock, one or more bank holding companies could control several banks. Branch banking can be accomplished by one bank operating at several locations or by one company owning or controlling several banks variously located.” at 809, 810.

According to the 1967 supplement to 1 Michie, Banks and Banking, Section 27:

“The corporate veil should be pierced whenever one bank is doing business through the instrumentality of another or in the same way as if the institutions were one and, if such circumstances exist, the relationship of parent and branch exists within federal and state statutes prohibiting branch banks even though banks are separate corporate organizations.”

See *Whitney National Bank in Jefferson Parrish v. Bank of New Orleans and Trust Company*, 323 F. 2d 290. (rev. on other grounds 379 U.S., 411)

In addition to the common control of the defendant Bank of Northern Utah, and the Bank of Utah, a unitary type and plan of operation is indicated from the following:

(a) The office of cashier of the Bank of Utah and the office of cashier of the Bank of Northern Utah, are to be held by the same person, William Beutler. (Tr. 155, 94, 72) According to 10 American Jurisprudence 2d, Banks, p. 132:

“The bank cashier generally has greater inherent power than any other bank officer. Ordinarily, the cashier of a bank is regarded as its chief executive officer . . . ”

It is stated in 4 Michie, Banks and Banking, pages 96 and 97 as follows :

“The powers and duties of a cashier, in virtue of his office, are much greater than the president’s though his office is strictly executive. In fact, the cashier generally has greater inherent powers than any other bank officer. * * * ”
(see cases cited in the treatise, and the current supplement thereto.)

It is certain that the Bank of Utah and the Bank of Northern Utah, managed by a common cashier, will engage in a singular operation. Although one might initially wonder how Mr. Beutler can truly represent the interests of two banking institutions whose respective fields of seeming competition overlap, there is nothing really anomolous with his role when the corporate veil is pierced, for it is then apparent that the two institutions are doing business in the same way as if they were one, and/or that the applicant is the instrumentality of the Bank of Utah.

(b) There are interlocking officers and directors of the Bank of Northern Utah and Bank of Utah (Tr. 155, 156) indicative of the plan of operation, and the new institution will be managed and controlled by the executives of the Bank of Utah.

(c) The Bank of Utah will in effect subsidize the Bank of Northern Utah. The cashier of the Bank of Northern Utah, William Beutler, will receive no salary as cashier, but will continue as a salaried employee and cashier of the Bank of Utah. (Tr. 95, 96) Yet he will devote whatever time is required to the Bank of Northern Utah, “ * * * *whether it was half a day, an hour a day, or eight hours a day.*” (Emphasis added) (Tr. 96) This unitary accomodation between the two banking institutions was explained by Mr. Beutler as follows:

“Q. How can you function as a cashier of the Bank of Northern Utah without leaving the Bank of Utah?

A. If I can liken this to a situation between the Bank of Utah and the Bank of Ben Lomond, which you have been rather interested in, you know we have a new officer, an auditor. We allow our auditor at the Bank of Utah to spend certain time at the Bank of Ben Lomond for which the Bank of Utah is compensated. Thus this one officer ends up as an officer of each bank. So we would expect a similar situation. However, with this exception, we would not as organizers of a new bank want to put undue drain on the resources of our new child here, our new bank. So I for one, and I can speak only for myself, would be willing to serve the new bank without compensation and I fully plan to.” (Tr. 95)

(d) The architecture of the proposed Bank of Northern Utah reflects the architecture used by the Bank of Utah. The application indicates it will be “colonial styled”. Mr. Frank M. Browning responded to a question

regarding the proposed architecture of the Bank of Northern Utah, when authorized heretofore, as follows:

“Q. Mr. Browning, let me ask this, do you recall ever making a statement that the architecture of the new bank and the interior design would follow the colonial architecture exemplified in Ogden and all branch banks of the Bank of Utah?

A. I am sure I made that statement. If a reporter asked me that, that is the statement I would make.” (Tr. 266)

Plaintiff protestant’s Exhibit AB represents the architect’s sketch of the proposed building of the applicant. (Tr. 443) Plaintiff protestant’s Exhibits AC and AD are photographs of the Bank of Utah’s branch at Riverdale, Utah, within five miles of Clearfield. An examination of said Exhibits AB, AC, and AD reveals that the proposed building of the applicant is virtually identical with the Riverdale branch of the Bank of Utah, further suggesting a solitary plan of operation.

(e) The application has been referred to as that of a branch. Under cross examination Mr. Beutler was asked if the Bank of Utah were to apply for a branch at Syracuse, Utah, would it weigh the resulting impact on the Bank of Northern Utah. The question and answer follow:

“Q. Do you think that they would, in their consideration weigh the impact of that branch on the Bank of Northern Utah?

A. Well, I don’t know. They probably would. We would consider it in much the same way we

tried to consider the impact on the other North Davis banks *in applying for this branch.*"
(Emphasis added) (Tr. 108)

(f) The defendant, Bank of Northern Utah, by its application in the instant matter and in its previous applications has designated a business name which suggests a similarity to Bank of Utah. Initially the proposed name of the corporation was to be Central Bank of Utah (Tr. 468-469), but for a reason immaterial here, the proposed name was changed to Bank of Northern Utah. In either case, by emphasis or de-emphasis, the phrases, *Central Bank of Utah*, and *Bank of Northern Utah*, contain the words necessary to indicate identification of the defendant applicant with the Bank of Utah.

(g) The projected operating income as set forth in the application was based upon the performance rate of the Bank of Utah; it was opined that the projected operating expenses in the Bank of Northern Utah would fall somewhere within the same category as those of the Bank of Utah. (Tr. 89, 90, 99)

Even though the applicant is a proposed corporation, claiming status as a distinct entity, its existence separate and apart from the Bank of Utah cannot be sustained. In this matter the corporate veil should be pierced, and the resulting exposure indicates that the Bank of Utah and the proposed Bank of Northern Utah will operate as if the two institutions were one, and/or the latter as the instrumentality of the former, in contravention of Utah law.

According to Section 7-1-26, U.C.A. 1953, as amended, a ground for refusal of approval of an application for a banking charter is “ * * * when the plan of operation does not comply with the laws of the state governing such institution * * * ”. In this case it is submitted that the proposed operation violates the provisions of Section 7-3-6, U.C.A. 1953, as amended, as heretofore set forth. It is further submitted that the failure of the Commissioner of Financial Institutions to so find, and his further failure to pierce the corporate veil, and go behind the application and proposed articles, was arbitrary and capricious.

POINT II

THE COMMISSIONER OF FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS WAS ARBITRARY AND CAPRICIOUS IN PRECLUDING PLAINTIFF'S ELICITING PROBATIVE EVIDENCE, AND IN RECEIVING EVIDENCE AND INFORMATION WHICH WAS NOT MADE AVAILABLE TO PLAINTIFF.

As has been set forth in a prior point, plaintiff contends that the proposed banking institution is in fact a branch of the Bank of Utah, and its establishment in Clearfield, Utah, would violate Section 7-3-6, U.C.A. 1953, as amended. At the hearing on this matter, plaintiff, in attempting to elicit evidence on the issue of whether the proposed operation constituted branch banking, was precluded from producing such evidence; and during the course of the hearing defendant applicant tendered “confidential” information on that subject to

the Commissioner of Financial Institutions, which neither of the defendants made available to the plaintiff.

It is elementary that due process requirements of the federal and state constitutions require that a hearing before an administrative agency exercising judicial, quasi judicial, or adjudicatory powers must be fair, open, and impartial, and if such a hearing is denied, the administrative action is void. 2 Am.Jur.2d, Administrative Law, p. 222. It is also fundamental that an administrative body may not base a decision, or findings in support thereof, upon evidence or information, outside the record, and in particular upon evidence obtained without the presence of and notice to interested parties, and not made known to them prior to the decision. Annotation, 18 A.L.R. 2d 552. A rule otherwise would amount to a denial of a hearing. *Simmons v. United States*, 348 U.S. 407; *English v. Long Beach*, (Calif.) 217 P.2d 22. See also *Spencer v. Industrial Commission*, 81 Utah 511, 20 P.2d 618; *Utah Power and Light Co. v. Public Service Comm. et al.*, 107 Utah 155, 152 P.2d 542.

1 Davis, Administrative Law Treatise, p. 412, states :

“The true principle is that a party who has a sufficient interest or right at stake in a determination of governmental action should be entitled to an opportunity to know and to meet, with the weapons of rebuttal evidence, cross-examination, and argument, unfavorable evidence of adjudicative facts, except in the rare circumstance when some other interest, such as national security, justifies an overriding of the interest in fair hearing. * * * ”

During plaintiff's examination of William W. Beutler, Vice President and Cashier of the Bank of Utah, and cashier and director of the Bank of Northern Utah, the witness was asked the identity of the stockholders who had controlling interest of the Bank of Utah and Bank of Ben Lomond. (Tr. 69-72) (Tr. 71, 72) The evidence sought was to "establish that the control of the Bank of Utah and the Bank of Ben Lomond is also the controlling interest of the applicant bank". (Tr. 70) The witness indicated the information was available. The plaintiff requested of the Commissioner of Financial Institutions

" * * * An order directing Mr. Beutler to furnish at this hearing the stockholders of the Bank of Utah and the Bank of Ben Lomond, or in the alternative the stockholders of the Bank of Utah who own 89% of the stock of the Bank of Utah who also own 73.55% of the stock of Ben Lomond",

of which ownership percentages the witness had previously given testimony. (Tr. 74, 69)

The Commissioner of Financial Institutions denied the request for the order sought, concluding it was confidential information. He invited the defendant Bank of Northern Utah

" * * * to consider informing us whether any of the applicants in this matter or any combination of individual applicants represent a controlling interest in any other bank. I will leave it up to them whether they furnish the information or not but I will open the hearing for that information if they care to furnish it." (Tr. 84, 85)

The plaintiff restated that the purpose of its inquiry was to establish that the defendant applicant was a branch of the Bank of Utah and/or Bank of Ben Lomond, and that the evidence sought also bore upon the question of competition and monopoly inasmuch as the Bank of Utah had branches at South Ogden, Riverdale, and Roy, all within close mileage of Clearfield State Bank. (Tr. 86) Plaintiff requested an order requiring the production of the percentage of stock ownership that each incorporator of the applicant owns of the stock of the Bank of Utah and/or the Bank of Ben Lomond, and also the percentage of stock that such incorporator owns in any corporation which owns stock in the Bank of Utah or Bank of Ben Lomond. (Tr. 87) The Commissioner denied the request, indicating the submission of the information to be voluntary.

“ * * * I am going to not issue a formal order that your furnish this information * * * the hearing will accept this information and testimony on it if you care to bring it.” (Tr. 88)

Subsequently, during the hearing, voluntary submission of the percentages of stock ownership was given to the Commissioner of Financial Institutions by defendant applicant

“ * * * on the condition it was given to the Commissioner as a confidential matter * * * ”.
(Tr. 156)

It was not made available to the plaintiff protestant (Tr. 157), and objection to not being afforded the opportunity to examine the materials submitted was raised. (Tr. 461-462)

It is not only apparent from the transcript of the hearing that evidence was tendered by the defendant applicant and received by the Commissioner of Financial Institutions relating to the stock interests aforementioned, and plaintiff was not allowed the opportunity to examine the same, but the transcript of oral argument in the trial court contains the admissions of counsel for the Bank of Northern Utah that certain of the evidence and information thus submitted to the Commissioner was not made available to the counsel for the plaintiff protestant. (R. 97, 98; Oral Argument Transcript, Trial Court)

In conclusion 5 of the defendant Commissioner's order he "concludes" of the organizers of the proposed bank:

" * * * Their financial responsibility is established by personal financial statements that have been filed with the Commissioner." (R. 9)

The record of the hearing indicates no such filing. The plaintiff submits that the "conclusion" aforementioned was unsupported by any evidence—or if such evidence were submitted by the defendant Bank of Northern Utah, then the receipt thereof by the Commissioner, and not making the same available to plaintiff, is action of an arbitrary and capricious nature.

It would seem that the Commissioner of Financial Institutions would be interested in determining the inter-relationship of the banking institutions aforementioned, and whether the defendant applicant was or was not

a separate entity in fact, and whether there would be a lessening of competition in the area by reason of the interrelationships enumerated. It is submitted that the Commissioner should have ordered the production of evidence regarding the relationships at issue here, and his failure to do so, was arbitrary and capricious.

Although recognizing the law anent branch banking, the Commissioner in his decision dismissed the issue here presented with the conclusion: "4. That applicant's request is to establish a unit bank, not a branch bank." (R. 9). This cursory dismissal and the failure of the Commissioner to pursue his own inquiry of the relationship of the defendant applicant and the Bank of Northern Utah invokes the language of *Central and Southern Motor Freight Tariff Association, et al v. U. S. et al*, 273 F. Supp. 823, at 832:

" * * * What is disturbing is the mechanistic, metaphysical incantation of the doctinal bar of the corporate veil. Such doctrines lose much of their sacrosanctity when urged in the context of regulated industries. The fact that a subsidiary corporation exists should be a starting point for a searching inquiry, not the finish line. * * * "

In all the aforementioned was the defendant Commissioner arbitrary and capricious; in precluding plaintiff in the elicitation of probative evidence; in denying the requests of plaintiff for orders compelling the production of probative evidence; and in the "unilateral" reception of evidence submitted by defendant applicant which was not made available to the plaintiff. Had the evidence been made available to plaintiff, further in-

quiry could have been pursued, and evidence produced, regarding the question of branch banking, and the question of competition and monopoly. The action of the defendant Commissioner was prejudicial to plaintiff.

POINT III

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