1970

Clearfield State Bank v. W. S. Brimhall, Commissioner of Financial Institutions of the State of Utah; and Bank of Northern Utah : Respondents Brief

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

ARGUMENTS

POINT I

THE PROPOSED BANKING FACILITY DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A BRANCH BANK SO AS TO VIOLATE UTAH LAW.

In recent years the question of what constitutes branch banking has been much litigated in the courts of this country. Under the decisions of those courts treating the question, it is clear that the proposed bank here in question would not be considered a branch bank.

One of the earliest cases to consider the question was the case of *Daniel vs. Best* 224 Iowa 1348, 279 NW 374 (1938); 23 ALR 3d 683, there two new banks were proposed by the stockholders of an existing bank when they voted the appropriation of part of the surplus of the latter to the organization of the new banks. The court held that the new banks were not branch banks in spite of the fact that the two new banks were managed by a board of three trustees selected by the directors of the existing bank from their own members, which three trustees were the president, vice-president and cashier of the existing banks. The court reasoned that where the business of each bank was conducted independent of one another and of the existing banks, and where each bank kept separate records they did not constitute branch banks.

The Colorado Supreme Court in recent decisions has reached results similar to that of the Iowa Court. *Peoples Bank vs. Banking Board*, (Colo), 436 P2d 681 (1968); *Goldy vs. Crane* (Colo), 445 P2d 212 (1968); *Nemurou vs. Bloom*, (Colo), 445 P2d 214 (1968).

In the *Peoples Bank case*, supra, the Supreme Court of Colorado affirmed the granting of an application in which the existing Guaranty Bank and Trust Co., of Denver, through its executive officers, put together the materials contained in the application. The court noted that the stock ownership of the two banks would be the same and proportionately identical; that the board of directors and chief executive officers would be the same; that the employees of the new bank would be trained and furnished by Guaranty Trust and that all accounting for the new bank would be done by the later. In upholding the Commissioner's action, the court stated that in order to establish that a proposed bank is a branch bank, the protestant must show that in substance Guaranty Bank and Trust was doing business through the instrumentality of the newly proposed bank or vice versa, in the same way as if the institutions were one, and that such had not been shown.

The *Crane case*, supra, followed the rationale of the *Peoples Bank Case*, supra. In this case the Colorado Banking Commission denied the charter of three proposed industrial banks on the ground that they would constitute branch banks. The District Court reversed the decision and the Supreme Court affirmed such reversal. The facts of the case were, that except for the resident office manager, each bank would have common officers and directors, that all said officers and directors were also officers and directors of Continental Finance Corporation of America, a holding company; that such holding company owned all the stock of two existing Colorado banks and would hold all the stock in the three new banks; and that the manager of each new bank would have limited loan authority. The court in allowing the charter to issue, noted that each proposed bank was a separate corporation; organized as an independent corporation entirely; each bank having its own independent capital structure; and each with a separate and independent loan basis; factors which the court held, indicated an independent banking operation. The court concluded then by holding:

'That it is not enough to show common control through common stock ownership and participation, but it must be shown that the alleged bank is doing business with the alleged parent in the same way as if the institutions were one; and, it must be shown that, 'the unitary type of operation', which is the hallmark of branch banks is present''.

Federal Courts which have considered the question in the context of adjudication under the National Banking Act (12 USC Section 26) which makes state branch banking laws applicable to national banks, have reached a similar result. *First National Bank of Billings vs. First Bank Stock Co.*, (CA 9th Cir 1962) 306 F2d 937; *Camden Trust Co. vs. Gidney* (CA DC Cir 1961), 301 F2d 251.

In the *First National Bank* case, supra, the Circuit Court held that it was not enough to show common ownership and control through stock ownership, and further that the fact that two banks had common directors and that one bank allowed the other to use its night deposit and vault facilities was not sufficient to show a branch bank. The Court pointed out that the two banks were separate corporations, each with its own capital, surplus and undivided profit, and its separate banking house.

As stated by the Court the critical question was whether one bank was doing business through the instrumentality of the other or vice versa, in the same way as if the institutions were one.

The second Federal case having bearing on the question is that of *Camden Trust Co. vs. Gidney*, supra. This was a suit by a New Jersey banking corporation to enjoin the Comptroller of Currency from issuing a certificate of authority to permit a national bank to establish a banking facility in Camden.

Under the facts of the case, nine directors of the Haddenfield National Bank filed an application for a new bank and appellants objected before the Comptroller. The court upheld the granting of the application even though directors and stockholders of Haddenfield National would also be directors and

and stockholders of the new bank. The Court pointed out that the capital structure of the two was completely independent, that the new bank's stockholders would be liable for their shares in the new bank independent of Haddenfield and that the new bank was located 2 miles from the office of Haddenfield.

The court placed great emphasis on the fact that deposits with the new bank would be its own liability and not Haddenfield's and that its loan limits would be those applicable to an independent bank, based on its own capital structure and totally independent of loan limitations applicable to Haddenfield National.

The critical factors which must be examined in determining the existence of a branch bank as indicated by the cases above was succinctly stated by the New Jersey Supreme Court in a recent decision. *Application of Kennelworth State Bank*, 49 NJ 330, 230 A2d 377, 1967, 23 ALR 3rd 683, 686.

The facts of that case were very similar to these now before the court, in that an established bank appealed the granting of a charter to another banking institution to locate in the community on the grounds that the new bank was in fact a branch of the other institution and thereby prohibited from locating in the community. The court affirmed the granting of the charter notwithstanding the fact that a majority of the outstanding stock of the new bank and the directorship would be in the hands of the stockholders and directors of the other bank. In so holding, the court distinguished a branch bank from other banking relationships in the following terms:

"A branch bank is not a separate corporation or legal entity but is an office or agency operated by the legal entity which operates the main bank. It has no separate board of directors or capital structure, its deposits are pooled with those of the main bank and its loan limits are based on the main bank's capital structure."

In applying the law as hereinabove set forth to the facts of this case, it is clear that the proposed bank does not constitute a branch of the Bank of Utah.

The testimony at the hearing and the application itself clearly indicates that the proposed bank will be a separate legal entity organized under the corporate laws of the State of Utah.

As testified by Mr. Beutler the proposed bank will have a separate and distinct board of directors and although some of the members of said board are also directors of the Bank of Utah (Tr 155) this has no bearing on the question of whether the proposed bank constitutes a branch bank. *Peoples Bank vs. Banking Board*, supra; *Goldy vs. Crane*, supra; *First National Bank of Billings vs. First Bank Stock Co.*; (CA 9th Cir 1962) 306 F2d 937; *Camden Trust Co. vs. Gidney*, supra; *Application of Kennelworth State Bank*, supra.

That this is a common practice in banking circles around the nation and here in Utah is evidenced by the testimony of Mr. Beutler, wherein he testified that the practice of interlocking officers and directors is common in Utah (Tr. 111) and that one Emerson Sturdevant is an officer or director of at least six different banks in the State. (Tr. 109)

Mr. Beutler further testified that at least seven other banks in the State had officers or directors which were also officers or directors of at least one other bank. (Tr. 109-111)

The president of the proposed bank will be a person not affiliated with the Bank of Utah in any way. Also, said bank will have its own separate employees and location (Tr 94,147, 150). Of even more significance is the fact that the proposed bank will have its own separate loan base independent of any other bank. With its own deposit liability and loan limitations. (Tr 61, et seq)

The stock ownership in the proposed bank will not be entirely in the hands of any other bank; however, certain of the present applicants do hold approximately 51% of the outstanding stock of the Bank of Utah (Tr. 157). However, the fact of common stock ownership has no bearing on the question of whether the proposed bank constitutes a branch bank. *Peoples Bank vs. Banking Board*, supra; *First National Bank of Billings vs. First Bank Stock Co.*, supra.

That common stock ownership is a common practice in banking circles was evidenced by the testimony of Dr. Nelson, an officer of First Security Corporation, called as a witness for the plaintiff, Clearfield State Bank, who admitted that the First Security Corporation owned the controlling stock in both the First Security State Bank and First Security Bank (NA). (Tr 396).

Protestant in its brief makes great issue out of the similarity of the name of the proposed bank and that of the Bank of Utah. However, it conveniently ignores the same similarity between one of the protestants, First Security State Bank and First Security Bank (NA).

It should be noted that protestant cites to no competent authority for its assertions as to what constitutes branch banking, but rests its arguments on secondary authorities and cases dealing with matters completely outside the banking area. The only case which has any relevancy at all is the case of *Whitney National Bank in Jefferson Parish vs. Bank of New Orleans and Trust Co.* (CA DC Cir 1963) 323 F2d 290, reversed 379 US 411. Which was decided under a Louisiana Law which prohibited the opening of new banks through holding companies and therefore, is inapplicable in this case.

As clearly indicated by the law and facts as recited above, the proposed Bank of Northern Utah possesses all the attributes of a unit bank. Such bank is an independent legal entity, with a separate capital structure and with its own separate and distinct loan base and deposit liability, operating at a separate and distinct location.

POINT II

THE COMMISSIONER OF FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS WAS NOT GUILTY OF PREJUDICIAL ERROR IN REFUSING TO DISCLOSE OR IN FAILING TO ALLOW DISCOVERY OF INFORMATION WHICH WAS IMMATERIAL AND IRRELEVANT.

It is well recognized by the courts of this country and the State of Utah, that alleged errors in proceedings before administrative bodies which do the complaining party no injury will not justify disturbing the determination of such body. *Utah Gas Service Co. vs. Mountain Fuel Supply Co.*, (Utah) 422 P2d 530 (1967) 18 ALR 2d 552 Section 10; *U.S. vs. Pierce Auto Freight Lines*, 66 S Ct 687, 327 US 515; 73 CJS, *Public Administrative Bodies and Procedures* 210.

In the matter before the court, plaintiff alleges that the Commissioner committed reversible error in not allowing them to see the financial statements of the applicants and in refusing to disclose a list of stockholders of the Bank of Utah and the Bank of Ben Lomond.

Assuming without admitting that the plaintiff had a right to such documents, the question remains, was the withholding of such documents prejudicial to the plaintiffs so as to constitute an arbitrary and capricious exercise of discretion on the part of the Commissioner.

Section 7-1-26 UCA 1953 as amended, sets forth the circumstances in which the Commissioner may refuse to approve an application for a unit bank in essentially the following terms:

1. When the plan of operation does not comply with the laws of Utah, or with accepted and prevailing practices; or,
2. When the incorporators or organizers shall not be of such a character, responsibility and general fitness as to warrant a belief that the business will be honestly conducted in accordance with law and for the best interests of the members, customers and depositors of the institution; or,
3. When the location or field of operation of the proposed business shall be in such close proximity to an established business subject to the banking laws of the State, that such established business might be unreasonably interfered with and the support of the new business would be such as to make improbable its success; or,

4. When other good and sufficient reasons exist for such refusal.

Under the provisions of the above Statute the only determination required to be made as to the applicants individually, in approving the application, is whether the incorporators or organizers are of such character, responsibility and general fitness as to warrant the belief that the business will be conducted in accordance with law and for the best interest of the members, customers and depositors of the institution. There is no requirement that any finding as to the financial status of the organizers be made.

That this was the intent of the legislature is evidenced by the fact that Section 7-3-10 UCA 1953 as amended, specifically provides that the proposed bank before commencing business must have a certain amount of subscribed stock and a certain expense fund. The critical points being that such financial requirements are to be met before commencing business and not at the time of application, and that the Statute limits the question of financial responsibility specifically to the bank as an entity and not to the independent financial ability of its organizers and incorporators.

As to the question of the general fitness of the applicants the record is more than adequate to support that finding. This is evidenced by the background information sheets on the application submitted to the Commissioner and by the qualifications of the applicants which were brought out during the course of the hearing. (Tr 57-60, 146, 253)

This fact was recognized by Judge Bryant H. Croft of the District Court who after studying the complete record affirmed the Commissioner's action and in so doing stated:

“(T)hat in this case no effort is made, and indeed none could be made, to content that the intended incorporators of the Bank of Northern Utah are of such a character, responsibility and general fitness as to warrant the belief that the business would not be honestly conducted in accordance with law and the best interest of the

members, customers and depositors of the institution. Indeed, the one complaint made about the incorporators is that most of them are established, experienced bankers in the Davis-Weber County areas” (R 29)

From the above it is evident that under the clear meaning of the Statute no finding need be made on the particular financial status of the applicants. Even assuming without admitting that it was error to withhold the financial statements; such statements were irrelevant and immaterial in the determination of this question in that substantial evidence found in the record supports the finding that the applicants are of such a character, responsibility and general fitness as to warrant the belief that said bank will be conducted honestly in accordance with law and in the best interest of the members, customers, and depositors of said bank.

The second allegation made by the appellants is that they were prejudiced by the Commissioner's failure to disclose to them a list of stockholders of the Bank of Utah and the Bank of Ben Lomond, an argument which is frivolous for at least two reasons.

In the first instance, it must be recognized that in fact the plaintiffs were given information as to what interest the proposed incorporators held in both the Bank of Utah and the Bank of Ben Lomond. In that regard, it was testified that the incorporators did not own the controlling interest in the Bank of Ben Lomond, but that they did in the Bank of Utah. (Tr 156, 157, 159, 160) Further, plaintiffs had the opportunity to question the individual incorporators as to their interest and were in fact, invited to do so. (Tr 158) However, they declined said invitation. (Tr 159) At no point in the record did the plaintiff question the incorporators as to their individual holdings in other banks although presented with the opportunity to do so. (Tr 57-112, 154, 146-152, 253-270)

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